Bylaws Updated February 18, 2021

Article 1 Name

The name of the corporation shall be the Open Apparel Registry, Inc. (the "Corporation").

Article 2 Office

In addition to the registered office specified in the Certificate of Incorporation, the Corporation may also have offices at such other places, within or without its state of incorporation, where it is qualified to do business, as its business and activities may require, and as the board of directors may, from time to time, designate. The address of the registered office and the name and the address of the registered agent of the Corporation required to be maintained by Section 8-102 of the Delaware General Corporation Law are: The Corporation Trust Company, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, County of New Castle.

Article 3 Members

Members of the board of directors shall constitute the membership of the Corporation.

Article 4 Directors

Section 1. Number

The Corporation shall have at least one (1) member and may have up to fifteen (15)

directors and collectively they shall be known as the board of directors. Subject to the foregoing, the number of the board of directors may be fixed from time to time by action of the directors. The number of directors may be increased or decreased by action of the board of directors, provided that any action by the board of directors to effect such increase or decrease shall require an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the entire board of directors at a regular or special meeting of the board for which proper notice as required hereunder shall have been duly given. No decrease shall shorten the term of any director then in office.

Section 2. Qualifications

Each director shall be a natural person at least eighteen (18) years of age who need not be a resident of Delaware. Each director shall serve in his or her individual capacity, and not as a representative, agent or employee of any corporation or other entity with which he or she may be employed or affiliated. The board of directors shall be comprised of individuals

representing the interests of the wide range of stakeholders served by the Company. Such categories include civil society, worker representatives, the open data sector, factory groups or manufacturers, industry MSIs and brands. No one category shall have more than three board member representatives and at least four categories shall be represented on the board, of which one must be civil society or labor or worker representatives.

Section 3. Powers

The activities and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of the board of directors.

Section 4. Term of Office

Directors shall be elected by a majority vote of the board of directors then in office. Each director shall hold office for a period of three (3) years and until his or her successor is elected and qualified, unless removed under Section 11 of this Article.

Section 5. Compensation

Directors shall serve without compensation except that they shall be allowed reasonable advancement or reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.

Section 6. Time and Place of Meetings

Annual and regular meetings of the board of directors shall be held at such place and time as determined by resolution of the board of directors. Special meetings of the board of directors may be called by the chairperson of the board, the Executive Director, by any director, or, if different, by the persons specifically authorized under the laws of this state to call special meetings of the board. Such meetings shall be held at the place and time designated by the person or persons calling the special meeting. Meetings of the board of directors may be held or attended telephonically, in person, or by digital means, such as through video conferencing, but in all cases shall be held in a manner that allows the members of the board of directors to speak contemporaneously.

Section 7. Notice of Meetings

Unless otherwise provided by the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or provisions of law, the following provisions shall govern the giving of notice for meetings of the board of directors:

- **a.** Annual and Regular Meetings. The board of directors shall hold at least one regular meeting annually with notice of the meeting to be provided at least thirty (30) days prior by the secretary of the Corporation to each member of the Board of Directors.
- **b.** Special Meetings. At least one (1) week prior, notice shall be given by the secretary of the Corporation to each director of each special meeting of the board. Such notice may be oral or written, may be given personally, by first class mail, by telephone or email, and shall state the place, date, and time of the meeting and the matters proposed to be acted upon at the meeting.
- **c.** Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice of a meeting is required to be given to any director of this corporation under provisions of the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or the law of this state, a waiver of notice in writing signed by the director,

whether before or after the time of the meeting, shall be equivalent to the giving of such notice.

Section 8. Quorum for Meetings

A quorum shall consist of a majority of the members of the board of directors. Except as otherwise provided under the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or provisions of law, no business shall be considered by the board at any meeting at which the required quorum is not present, and the only motion which the chair shall entertain at such meeting is a motion to adjourn.

Section 9. Majority Action as Board Action

Every act done or decision made by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the board of directors, unless the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or provisions of law require a greater percentage or different voting rules for approval of a matter by the board.

Section 10. Conduct of Meetings

Meetings of the board of directors shall be presided over by the chairperson of the board, or, if no such person has been so designated, or in his or her absence, the Executive Director of the corporation, or in his or her absence, by a chairperson chosen by a majority of the directors present at the meeting. The secretary of the corporation shall act as secretary of all meetings of the board, provided that, in his or her absence, the presiding officer shall appoint another person to act as secretary of the meeting.

Meetings shall be governed by the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order, insofar as such rules are not inconsistent with or in conflict with the articles of incorporation, these bylaws or with provisions of law.

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the board or any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if all members of the board or the committee consent in writing to the adoption of a resolution authorizing the action. The resolution and the written consent thereto by the members of the board or committee shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the board or committee.

Any one or more members of the Board or any committee thereof may participate in a meeting of the board or committee by means of a telephone conference or other means of communication by which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time. Participation by such means shall constitute a presence in person at a meeting.

Section 11. Vacancies

Vacancies on the board of directors shall exist (a) on the death, resignation, or removal of any director, and (b) whenever the number of authorized directors is increased.

A director may not be removed without an affirmative vote of two-thirds of every director on the board. Such vote must take place at a regular or special meeting of the board for which proper notice of the proposed action has been duly given. Unless otherwise prohibited by the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or provisions of law, vacancies on the board may be filled by approval of the board of directors. If the number of directors then in office is less than a quorum, a vacancy on the board may be filled by approval of a majority of the directors then in office or by a sole remaining director. A person elected to fill a vacancy on the board shall hold office until the next election of the board of directors or until his or her death, resignation, or removal from office.

Section 12. Nonliability of Directors

The directors shall not be personally liable for the debts, liabilities, or other obligations of the corporation.

Section 13. Indemnification by Corporation of Directors and Officers

The Corporation may, to the fullest extent now or hereafter permitted by and in accordance with the standards and procedures provided for by Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law and any amendments thereto, indemnify any person made, or threatened to be made, a party to any action or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she or his or her testator or intestate administrator was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, against judgments, fines, amounts paid in settlement and reasonable expenses, including attorneys' fees related to such action or proceeding.

Section 14. Insurance for Corporate Agents

Except as may be otherwise provided under provisions of law, the board of directors may adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase and maintenance of insurance on behalf of any agent of the corporation (including a director, officer, employee, or other agent of the corporation) against liabilities asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against such liability under the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or provisions of law.

Section 15. Advisory Board

The board of directors or the Executive Director acting on behalf of the board may from time to time appoint persons to act singly or as a committee or committees to provide expert advice to the Corporation or to assist it in other ways. The board of directors may delegate to such group of advisors the powers and authority of the board in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation, to the extent permitted, and, except as may otherwise be provided, by provisions of law. Groups of advisors may include an honorary board, an advisory board, a friends committee, and/or other advisory groups.

Each such advisor shall serve at the pleasure of the board for a period designated by the board and shall have only such authority or obligations as the board of directors may from time to time determine. No advisor shall receive compensation for services rendered, except they shall be allowed reasonable advancement or reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.

Section 16. Honorary Members

The board of directors or the Executive Director acting on behalf of the board shall have the authority to establish honorary membership. Honorary members shall have no voting rights or powers in their capacity as honorary members of the corporation.

Article 5 OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS

Section 1. Number and Qualifications.

The officers of the Corporation shall be a Chair, a Secretary, a Treasurer and such other officers, if any, including one or more Vice Chairs, as the board of directors may from time to time appoint. One person may hold more than one office in the Corporation except that no one person may hold the offices of Chair and Secretary. The Chair and Treasurer shall be a director of the Corporation; the other officers need not be directors of the Corporation. No instrument required to be signed by more than one officer may be signed by one person in more than one capacity.

Section 2. Election and Terms of Office.

The officers of the Corporation shall be elected at the annual meeting of the board of directors. Each such officer, whether elected at the annual meeting or to fill a vacancy or otherwise, shall hold office until the close of the election of officers at the annual meeting next held after his or her election or until a successor shall have been elected and shall qualify, or until the death, incapacity, resignation or removal of such officer, whichever is earliest.

Section 3. Employees and Other Agents.

The board of directors may appoint from time to time such employees and other agents as it shall deem necessary, each of whom shall hold office at the pleasure of the board, and shall have such authority and perform such duties and shall receive such reasonable compensation as the board of directors may from time to time determine. No such other officer or agent need be a director of the Corporation. To the full extent allowed by law, the board of directors may delegate to any officer or agent any powers possessed by the board of directors and may prescribe their respective title, terms of office, authorities and duties.

Section 4. Removal.

Removal of the Executive Director shall require an affirmative vote of two-thirds of all of the directors voting and present at a regular or special meeting of the board for which proper notice of the proposed action shall have been duly given. Any other employee or agent shall be subject to removal at the professional discretion of the Executive Director.

Section 5. Vacancies.

In case of any vacancy in any office, a successor to fill the unexpired portion of any term may be elected by the board of directors.

Section 6. Chair: Powers and Duties.

The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the board of directors. The Chair shall have general supervision of the affairs of the Corporation, and shall keep the board of directors fully informed of the activities of the Corporation. He or she has the power to sign and

execute alone in the name of the Corporation all contracts authorized either generally or specifically by the board, unless the board shall specifically require an additional signature.

Section 7. Vice Chair: Powers and Duties.

The Vice Chair shall have such powers and duties as may be assigned to him/her by the board of directors. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair, in the order designated by the board of directors, shall perform the duties of the Chair.

Section 8. Secretary: Powers and Duties.

The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the board of directors in books provided for that purpose. He or she shall be responsible for the giving and serving of all notices of the Corporation, and shall perform all duties customarily incident to the office of the Secretary, subject to the control of the board of directors, and shall perform such other duties as shall from time to time be assigned by the board of directors.

Section 9. Treasurer: Powers and Duties.

The Treasurer shall keep or cause to be kept full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements of the Corporation, and shall deposit or cause to be deposited all moneys, evidences of indebtedness and other valuable documents of the Corporation in the name and to the credit of the Corporation in such banks or depositories as the board of directors may designate. At the annual meeting of the board of directors and whenever else required by the board of directors, the Treasurer shall render a statement of the Corporation's accounts. The Treasurer shall at all reasonable times exhibit or cause to be exhibited the Corporation's books and accounts to any officer or director of the Corporation and shall perform all duties incident to the position of Treasurer subject to the control of the board of directors, and shall when required, give such security for the faithful performance of his or her duties as the board of directors may determine. The Treasurer shall cause the Corporation to engage a qualified accounting firm to perform an audit of the Corporation at the direction or request of a majority of the board of directors.

Section 10. Executive Director: Powers and Duties.

The Executive Director shall be responsible for the regular operations of the Corporation, including, but not limited to, causing the Corporation to operate in accordance with its nonprofit purpose. The Executive Director shall be responsible for hiring employees, independent contractors, and service providers to perform duties for the corporation. The Executive Director is empowered under these Bylaws to execute documents on behalf of the Corporation and to cause the Corporation to make necessary expenditures, provided however such expenditures shall not exceed \$50,000 in the aggregate for any directly or indirectly related projects. The board of directors shall oversee the Executive Director's performance of his or her duties, and shall have the power to determine any additional duties and powers of the Executive Director as it deems necessary.

Section 10. Reasonable Compensation.

Any officer, employee or agent of the Corporation is authorized to receive reasonable compensation for actual services rendered to the Corporation in such amount as authorized by a majority vote of the entire board of directors (excluding the participation of any director whose compensation is at issue). In like manner, the board of directors may also

authorize reimbursement of expenditures reasonably incurred by any officer, employee or agent of the Corporation in furtherance of the purposes of the Corporation.

Article 6 Committees

Section 1. Executive Committee

The board of directors may, by a majority vote of its members, designate an Executive Committee consisting of at least two (2) board members and may delegate to such committee the powers and authority of the board in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation, to the extent permitted, and, except as may otherwise be provided, by provisions of law.

By a majority vote of its members, the board may at any time revoke or modify any or all of the Executive Committee authority so delegated, increase or decrease but not below two (2) the number of the members of the Executive Committee, and fill vacancies on the Executive Committee from the members of the board. The Executive Committee shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings, cause them to be filed with the corporate records, and report the same to the board from time to time as the board may require.

Section 2. Other Committees

The Corporation shall have such other committees as may from time to time be designated by resolution of the board of directors. These committees may consist of persons who are not also members of the board.

Section 3. Meetings and Action of Committees

Meetings and action of committees shall be governed by, noticed, held, and taken in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws concerning meetings of the board of directors, with such changes in the context of such bylaw provisions as are necessary to substitute the committee and its members for the board of directors and its members, except that the time for regular and special meetings of committees may be fixed by resolution of the board of directors or by the committee. The board of directors may also adopt rules and regulations pertaining to the conduct of meetings of committees to the extent that such rules and regulations are not inconsistent with the provisions of these bylaws.

Article 7 Execution of Instruments, Deposits, and Funds

Section 1. Execution of Instruments

The board of directors, except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, may by resolution authorize any officer or agent of the corporation to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable monetarily for any purpose or in any amount.

Section 2. Checks and Notes

Except as otherwise specifically determined by resolution of the board of directors, or as otherwise required by law, checks, drafts, promissory notes, orders for the payment of money, and other evidence of indebtedness of the Corporation shall be signed by the Executive Director of the Corporation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any payment of money or evidence of indebtedness exceeding \$50,000 shall require written consent of the Chairperson and Treasurer, which consent may be provided in an email transmission and no payment of money shall be divided into amounts of \$50,000 or less in order to avoid this provision. All disbursements are subject to the requirement that the Organization exercises effective segregation of duties with respect to the authorization or approval of transactions by *the Executive Director* and the recording or reporting of related transactions *by the Finance Manager (or other designated party)*.

Section 3. Deposits

All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the board of directors may select.

Section 4. Gifts

The board of directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, or devise for the nonprofit purposes of this Corporation.

Article 8 Corporate Records, Reports, and Seal

Section 1. Maintenance of Corporate Records

The Corporation shall keep at its principal office:

- a. Minutes of all meetings of directors, committees of the board, and, if this Corporation has members, of all meetings of members, indicating the time and place of holding such meetings, whether regular or special, how called, the notice given, and the names of those present and the proceedings thereof;
- b. Adequate and correct books and records of account, including accounts of its properties and business transactions and accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, and losses;
- c. A record of its members, if any, indicating their names and addresses and, if applicable, the class of membership held by each member and the termination date of any membership;
- d. A copy of the Corporation's articles of incorporation and bylaws as amended to date, which shall be open to inspection by the members, if any, of the Corporation at all reasonable times during office hours.

Section 2. Corporate Seal

The board of directors may adopt, use, and at will alter, a corporate seal. Such seal shall be kept at the principal office of the Corporation. Failure to affix the seal to corporate instruments, however, shall not affect the validity of any such instrument.

Section 3. Directors' Inspection Rights

Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect and copy all books, records, and documents of every kind and to inspect the physical properties of the Corporation, and shall have such other rights to inspect the books, records, and properties of this Corporation as may be required under the articles of incorporation, other provisions of these bylaws, and provisions of law.

Section 4. Right to Copy and Make Extracts

Any inspection under the provisions of this article may be made in person or by agent or attorney and the right to inspection shall include the right to copy and make extracts.

Section 5. Periodic Report

The board shall provide an annual report to the corporation's advisory board. The board shall also cause any annual or periodic report required under law to be prepared and delivered to an office of this state or to the members, if any, of this Corporation, to be so prepared and delivered within the time limits set by law.

Article 9 Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be a calendar year unless or until otherwise determined by the board of directors.

Article 10 Conflict of Interest and Compensation Approval Policies

Section 1. Purpose of Conflict of Interest Policy

The purpose of this conflict of interest policy is to protect this tax-exempt Corporation's interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an officer or director of the Corporation or any "disqualified person" as defined in Section 4958(f)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended (the "Code") and as amplified by Treasury Regulation Section 53.4958-3 and which might result in a possible "excess benefit transaction" as defined in Section 4958(c)(1)(A) of the Code and as amplified by Treasury Regulation Section 53.4958. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations.

Section 2. Definitions

a. Interested Person. Any director, principal officer, member of a committee with board delegated powers, or any other person who is a "disqualified person" as defined in Section 4958(f)(1) of the Code and as amplified by Treasury Regulation Section 53.4958-3, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is an interested person.

b. Financial Interest. A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family:

- 1. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Corporation has a transaction or arrangement,
- 2. A compensation arrangement with the Corporation or with any entity or individual with which the Corporation has a transaction or arrangement, or
- 3. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the Corporation is negotiating a transaction or arrangement.

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are more than *de minimis*.

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Section 3, paragraph b, a person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists.

Section 3. Conflict of Interest Avoidance Procedures

a. Duty to Disclose. In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person must disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the directors, members of committees with board delegated powers, or members of the board considering the proposed transaction or arrangement ("disinterested persons").

b. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists. After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the interested person, he/she shall leave the disinterested persons while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining disinterested persons shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.

c. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest. Except as provided in subsection (d) below, an interested person may make a presentation at a board or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.

The chair of the board or committee chairperson shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.

After exercising due diligence, the board or committee shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.

If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the corporation's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination, it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

d. Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy. If the board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.

If, after hearing the member's response and after making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the board or committee determines the member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

Section 4. Records of Board and Board Committee Proceedings

The minutes of meetings of board and all committees with board delegated powers shall contain:

- a. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the disinterested persons' decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.
- b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with the proceedings.

Section 5. Compensation Approval Policies

A director who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.

A member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.

When approving compensation for directors, officers and employees, contractors, and any other compensation contract or arrangement, in addition to complying with the conflict of interest requirements and policies contained in the preceding and following sections of this article as well as the preceding paragraphs of this section of this article, the board or compensation committee shall also comply with the following additional requirements and procedures:

- a. Prior to the first payment of compensation, the amount and terms of compensation shall be determined in consultation with disinterested persons;
- b. All disinterested persons who determine compensation arrangements must not have a conflict of interest with respect to the compensation arrangement as specified in Treasury Regulation Section 53.4958-6(c)(iii), which generally requires that each board member or committee member approving a compensation arrangement between this organization and a "disqualified person" (as defined in Section 4958(f)(1) of the Code and as amplified by Treasury Regulation Section 53.4958-3)
 - 1. is not the person who is the subject of the compensation arrangement, or a family member of such person,
 - 2. is not in an employment relationship subject to the direction or control of the person who is the subject of the compensation arrangement,
 - 3. does not receive compensation or other payments subject to approval by the person who is the subject of the compensation arrangement,
 - 4. has no material financial interest affected by the compensation arrangement, and
 - 5. does not approve a transaction providing economic benefits to the person who is the subject of the compensation arrangement, who in turn has approved or will approve a transaction providing benefits to the board or committee member.
- c. The disinterested persons determining compensation shall obtain and rely upon appropriate data as to comparability prior to approving the terms of compensation. Appropriate data may include the following:
 - 1. compensation levels paid by similarly situated organizations, both taxable and tax-exempt, for functionally comparable positions. "Similarly situated" organizations are those of a similar size, purpose, and with similar resources,
 - 2. the availability of similar services in the geographic area of this organization,
 - 3. current compensation surveys compiled by independent firms, and
 - 4. actual written offers from similar institutions competing for the services of the person who is the subject of the compensation arrangement.

As allowed by Treasury Regulation Section 53.4958-6, if the Corporation has average annual gross receipts (including contributions) for its three prior tax years of less than \$1 million, the board or compensation committee will have obtained and relied upon appropriate data as to comparability if it obtains and relies upon data on compensation paid by three comparable organizations in the same or similar communities for similar services.

d. The terms of compensation and the basis for approving them shall be recorded in written minutes of the meeting of the board of directors. Such documentation shall include the following:

- 1. the terms of the compensation arrangement and the date it was approved;
- 2. the disinterested persons who determined the compensation arrangement;
- 3. the comparability data obtained and relied upon and how the data was obtained;
- 4. if the disinterested persons determine that reasonable compensation for a specific position in the Corporation or for providing services under any other compensation arrangement with the Corporation is higher or lower than the range of comparability data obtained, the board or committee shall record in the minutes of the meeting the basis for its determination;
- 5. if the disinterested persons determining compensation make adjustments to comparability data due to geographic area or other specific conditions, these adjustments and the reasons for them shall be recorded in the minutes of the board or committee meeting;
- 6. any actions taken with respect to determining if a disinterested person had a conflict of interest with respect to the compensation arrangement, and if so, actions taken to make sure the member with the conflict of interest did not affect or participate in the approval of the transaction (for example, a notation in the records that after a finding of conflict of interest by a member, the member with the conflict of interest was asked to, and did, leave the meeting prior to a discussion of the compensation arrangement and a taking of the votes to approve the arrangement); and
- 7. The minutes of board or committee meetings at which compensation arrangements are approved must be prepared before the later of the date of the next board or committee meeting or 60 days after the final actions of the board or committee are taken with respect to the approval of the compensation arrangements. The minutes must be reviewed and approved by the board and committee as reasonable, accurate, and complete within a reasonable period thereafter, normally prior to or at the next board or committee meeting following final action on the arrangement by the board or committee.

Section 6. Annual Statements

Each director, principal officer, and member of a committee with governing board delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms such person:

- a. has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy,
- b. has read and understands the policy,
- c. has agreed to comply with the policy, and
- d. understands the Corporation is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

Section 7. Periodic Reviews

To ensure the Corporation operates in a manner consistent with charitable purpose and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects:

- a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on competent survey information, and the result of arm's-length bargaining.
- b. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management organizations conform to the Corporation's written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes, and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit, or in an excess benefit transaction.

Section 8. Use of Outside Experts

When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in Section 7, the Corporation may, but need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the board of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

Article 11 Amendment of Bylaws

Subject to the power of the members, if any, of this Corporation to adopt, amend, or repeal the bylaws of this Corporation and except as may otherwise be specified under provisions of law, these bylaws, or any of them, may be altered, amended, or repealed and new bylaws adopted by approval of the board of directors.

Article 12 Construction and Terms

If there is any conflict between the provisions of these bylaws and the articles of incorporation of the Corporation, the provisions of the articles of incorporation shall govern.

Should any of the provisions or portions of these bylaws be held unenforceable or invalid for any reason, the remaining provisions and portions of these bylaws shall be unaffected by such holding.

All references in these bylaws to the articles of incorporation shall be to the articles of incorporation, articles of organization, certificate of incorporation, organizational charter, corporate charter, or other founding document of the Corporation filed with an office of this state and used to establish the legal existence of the Corporation.

All references in these bylaws to a section or sections of the Internal Revenue Code shall be to such sections of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended from time to time, or to corresponding provisions of any future federal tax code.

ADOPTION OF BYLAWS

We, the undersigned, are directors of the Corporation, and we consent to, and hereby do, adopt the foregoing bylaws, consisting of the 14 preceding pages, as the bylaws of the Corporation.

Date: 03 / 05 / 2021	
Name] Peter Burrows	
Date: 03 / 03 / 2021	
Moelen	
Name] Paul Roeland	
Date: 03 / 03 / 2021	
Ar-	
Name] Rola Abimourched	

HELLOSIGN

TITLE	Updated bylaws: signature requested
FILE NAME	2021 02 UPDATED Btry, Inc. (1).pdf
DOCUMENT ID	03f17bed26ddb554d0693e07f0b1188dc253dc3f
AUDIT TRAIL DATE FORMAT	MM / DD / YYYY
STATUS	 Completed

Document History

C Sent	03 / 03 / 2021 20:16:46 UTC	Sent for signature to Peter Burrows (pburrows@fairfactories.org), Paul Roeland (paul@cleanclothes.org) and Rola Abimourched (rola.abimourched@workersrights.org) from natalie@openapparel.org IP: 68.198.220.247
)	03 / 03 / 2021	Viewed by Paul Roeland (paul@cleanclothes.org)
Viewed	20:32:49 UTC	IP: 31.151.3.137
J.	03 / 03 / 2021	Signed by Paul Roeland (paul@cleanclothes.org)
SIGNED	20:34:21 UTC	IP: 31.151.3.137
O VIEWED	03 / 04 / 2021 00:11:52 UTC	Viewed by Rola Abimourched (rola.abimourched@workersrights.org) IP: 71.127.43.26

HELLOSIGN

TITLE	Updated bylaws: signature requested
FILE NAME	2021 02 UPDATED Btry, Inc. (1).pdf
DOCUMENT ID	03f17bed26ddb554d0693e07f0b1188dc253dc3f
AUDIT TRAIL DATE FORMAT	MM / DD / YYYY
STATUS	 Completed

Document History

SIGNED	03 / 04 / 2021 00:12:18 UTC	Signed by Rola Abimourched (rola.abimourched@workersrights.org) IP: 71.127.43.26
© VIEWED	03 / 05 / 2021 12:59:40 UTC	Viewed by Peter Burrows (pburrows@fairfactories.org) IP: 66.220.255.29
SIGNED	03 / 05 / 2021 13:00:06 UTC	Signed by Peter Burrows (pburrows@fairfactories.org) IP: 66.220.255.29
COMPLETED	03 / 05 / 2021 13:00:06 UTC	The document has been completed.